Planning Committee 24 June 2020

Virtual Meeting, 24 June 2020 - At a Meeting of the Planning Committee of North Ayrshire Council at 10.00 a.m.

Present

Tom Marshall, Timothy Billings, Robert Barr, Ian Clarkson, Robert Foster, Christina Larsen, Shaun Macauley, Ellen McMaster, Ronnie McNicol.

In Attendance

J. Miller, Chief Planning Officer (Planning), A. Craig, Senior Manager, J. Law; Solicitor (Legal Services); M. Lindsey, Customer Solutions Supervisor (ICT); M. Anderson, Senior Manager (Committee & Member Services), and E. Gray, D. McCaw, A. Little and H. Clancy, Committee Services Officers (Chief Executive's Service).

Also In Attendance

A. Hume, Senior Development Management Officer, I.Davies, Senior Development Management Officer, A Gemmell, Manager, J. Mack, Planning Officer and K. Gee, Technician (Planning).

Apologies

Donald Reid

Chair

Councillor Marshall in the Chair.

1. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest by Members in terms of Standing Order 10 and Section 5 of the Code of Conduct for Councillors.

2. Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 22 January 2020 were confirmed and the Minutes signed in accordance with Paragraph 7 (1) of Schedule 7 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

3.1 19/00908/PPM: Site To South And West Of 10 Crompton Way, North Newmoor, Irvine

Persimmon Homes have applied for Planning Permission for the erection of 197 dwelling houses together with associated roads, paths, open space, SuDS infrastructure and landscaping. No representations were received.

Members noted that Education had not provided a response to the consultation. In response the Chief Planning Officer (Planning) responded that Educational capacity for each residential allocation had been addressed through the Local Development Plan process.

The Chief Planning Officer (Planning) undertook to contact Education to ascertain the school allocation attributable for the site; and request that Education respond to the consultation and provide allocation and capacity advice for each future residential application.

Councillor Foster seconded by Councillor Larsen, moved to approve planning permission subject to conditions.

There being no amendment, the motion was declared carried.

Accordingly, the Committee agreed to grant the application subject to the following conditions:

- 1. That, prior to the commencement of any building operations, the applicant shall submit for the written approval of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority a detailed schedule of the proposed external finishes. Thereafter, the development shall be implemented only in accordance with such details as may be approved, unless otherwise agreed in writing with North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.
- 2. That prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the applicant shall submit:
 - Full details of the proposed acoustic barriers, and

- A scheme of maintenance for the acoustic barriers for the written approval of North Ayrshire as Planning Authority. For the avoidance of doubt the barrier requires to be effective acoustically, such as a close boarded timber fence with a mass per unit of area in excess of 12kg/m2 and with no gaps at the joints, or alternatively, a continuous masonry wall. The acoustic barriers shall thereafter be erected in accordance with such details as may be approved and maintained in accordance with such as scheme as may be approved, all to the satisfaction of north Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.

- 3. That prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the applicant shall provide details of which houses will be provided with thermal double glazing and acoustic ventilation providing sound reduction of a minimum of 30dBRw for the written approval of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. The applicant shall also provide full details of the proposed thermal double glazing and acoustic ventilation for the written approval of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development shall be implemented only in accordance with such details as may be approved, unless otherwise agreed in writing with North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.
- 4. That the rated noise level, as defined in BS4142, from the commercial activities must not exceed the background noise level at the curtilage of any proposed residential property by 5dB(A) or more.
- 5. That prior to the commencement of the development, hereby approved, the applicant shall undertake a desk study of the application site, (including the review of any previous site investigations) to assess the likelihood of contamination and assist in the design of an appropriate site investigation and

subsequent suitable quantitative risk assessment. Remediation proposals shall also be presented in relation to any significant findings.

All documentation shall be verified by a suitably qualified Environmental Consultant and submitted to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. Thereafter the presence of any significant unsuspected contamination, which becomes evident during the development of the site, shall be reported to North Ayrshire Council and treated in accordance with an agreed remediation scheme.

The presence of any significant unsuspected contamination that becomes evident during the development of the site shall be brought to the attention of Environmental Health. Thereafter a suitable investigation strategy as agreed with North Ayrshire Council shall be implemented and any necessary remediation works carried out prior to any further development taking place on the site, all to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.

On completion of the proposed works written verification, detailing what was done by way of any remediation, shall also be submitted, all to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.

- 6. That prior to the commencement of the development the applicant shall assess if a Detailed Air Quality Assessment is required to ensure that the development will not impact ambient air quality at any sensitive receptors and submit the findings to North Ayrshire Council. If required, a Detailed Air Quality Assessment will be submitted to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council.
- 7. That prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, full details of the drainage arrangements including:

- post development overland flow paths, attenuation measures and overflow devices,

- porous paving or linear filter trenches adjacent to car areas/driveways,

- a maintenance schedule for the proposed drainage assets,

- a land drainage strategy shall be provided for the written approval of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. The development shall then progress in accordance with such details as may be approved.

- 8. That, prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a scheme of further intrusive site investigations for mine entries and adits shall be undertaken by appropriately qualified persons, the scope of which shall be adequate to fully assess the ground conditions below the site and inform any required remedial works. Thereafter, the applicant or their representative shall prepare and submit a report of findings arising from the intrusive site investigations for the approval of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. Any remediation works which are approved shall then be carried out prior to the commencement of the development.
- 9. No development shall take place within the development site as outlined in red on the approved plan until the developer has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological works in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant, agreed by North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. Thereafter the developer shall ensure that the programme of archaeological works is fully implemented and that all

recording and recovery of archaeological resources within the development site is undertaken to the satisfaction of the Planning Authority in agreement with the West of Scotland Archaeology Service.

- 10. That immediately prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a pre-construction badger survey shall be undertaken in order to determine whether any new setts have been established on the site and submitted for the approval of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. If any setts are discovered, the development shall not progress until a scheme of mitigation has been approved and undertaken, all to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.
- 11. That prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the applicant shall submit full details of the proposed boundary treatments for the written approval of North Ayrshire as Planning Authority. The development shall then progress in accordance with such details as may be approved to the satisfaction of north Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.
- 12. That no development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved by North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority a scheme of landscaping, which shall include details of species, planting densities, soil treatment and aftercare and shall include indications of all existing trees and hedgerows on the land and details of any to be retained together with measures for their protection in the course of the development.
- 13. That all planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting season and seeding seasons following the occupation of the buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner; and any trees or plants which, within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.
- 14. That during construction, a 30m buffer shall be established around the four trees identified in the Phase One Habitat Survey (EDI_1952) as being within 30m of the site and having potential for bat roosts. If this cannot be achieved a further tree climbing assessment shall be carried out and If any roosts are discovered, the development shall not progress until a scheme of mitigation has been approved and undertaken, all to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.

4.1 20/00106/PPM: West Byrehill Industrial Estate, Byrehill Place, Kilwinning

Dawn Homes Limited have applied for planning permission for a residential development comprising 76 terraced and semi-detached dwelling houses with associated infrastructure and landscaping. No representations were received.

In response to a query by Members, the Chief Planning Officer (Planning) suggested the inclusion of a further condition in relation to the policy position on carbon emissions.

Members noted that Education had not provided a response to the consultation. In response the Chief Planning Officer (Planning) responded that Educational capacity for each residential allocation had been addressed through the Local Development Plan process.

The Chief Planning Officer (Planning) undertook to contact Education to ascertain the school allocation attributable for the site; and request that Education respond to the consultation and provide allocation and capacity advice for each future residential application.

Councillor Foster seconded by Councillor Billings, moved to approve planning permission subject to the conditions set out in the report and the additional condition referred to above.

There being no amendment, the motion was declared carried, Councillor Barr dissenting.

Accordingly, the Committee agreed to grant the application subject to the following conditions:

1. That prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the applicant shall submit the following for the written approval of North Ayrshire as Planning Authority:

- Full details of the wall vent and glazing systems for houses where noise reduction measures are recommended in the submitted noise impact assessment by Bureau Veritas (March 2020);

- Full details of the proposed acoustic fencing for the boundary of the site with the transport depot, and

- A scheme of maintenance for the acoustic fencing,

For the avoidance of doubt, the materials used for constructing the acoustic fencing shall require a mass per unit of area in excess of 12kg/m2, with no gaps at the joints between timber boards. The acoustic fencing shall be erected in accordance with such details before any of the associated houses are occupied and thereafter retained permanently in accordance with the scheme of maintenance as may be approved, all to the satisfaction of north Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.

2. That, prior to the commencement of any building operations, the applicant shall submit for the written approval of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority a finalised schedule of the proposed external finishes to be used, including

driveway and path surfaces. Thereafter, the development shall be implemented only in accordance with such details as may be approved, unless otherwise agreed in writing with North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.

- 3. That prior to the commencement of the development the applicant shall assess if a Detailed Air Quality Assessment is required to ensure that the development will not impact ambient air quality at any sensitive receptors and submit the findings to North Ayrshire Council. If required, a Detailed Air Quality Assessment will be submitted to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council.
- 4. That prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the recommendations contained in the submitted Ecological Assessment (January 2020), including further survey work and the preparation of a biodiversity action plan shall be undertaken for implementation by the applicant during the course of the development under the supervision of the ecological consultant, all to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.
- 5. That the plot boundary treatments as illustrated on the approved plans shall be erected prior to the occupation of each house within the development to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.
- 6. That no development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved by North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority a scheme of landscaping, which shall include details of species, planting densities, soil treatment and aftercare, taking account of the required biodiversity action plan. Thereafter, all planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the details as may be approved shall be carried out in the first planting season and seeding seasons following the occupation of the buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years from their planting die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.
- 7. That the presence of any significant unsuspected contamination that becomes evident during the development of the site shall be brought to the attention of Environmental Health. Thereafter a suitable investigation strategy as agreed with North Ayrshire Council shall be implemented and any necessary remediation works carried out prior to any further development taking place on the site, all to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.
- 8. That, prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, details of the heat and power systems for the houses, which shall include low or zero carbon technologies to demonstrate that at least 10% of the current carbon emissions reduction set by Scottish Building Standards will be met, shall be submitted for the written approval of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with such details as may be approved unless otherwise agreed in writing with North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.

4.2 20/00323/PPM: West Byrehill Industrial Estate, Byrehill Place, Kilwinning

Ashtenne Industrial Fund LLP have applied for a Section 42 planning application to remove/vary conditions 1 (j) and 2 of planning permission 13/00038/PPPM (for residential development and a neighbourhood centre). No representations were received.

Councillor Foster seconded by Councillor Marshall, moved to approve the application subject to conditions.

There being no amendment, the motion was declared carried.

Accordingly, the Committee agreed to grant the application subject to the following conditions:

1. Prior to the commencement of any development on site, a further application(s) for the approval of the matters specified in this condition shall be submitted to and approved by North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. These matters are as follows:

a) a design and access statement taking into account the relevant North Ayrshire supplementary design guidance;

b) details of the layout of the development, including roads, footways, shared paths, cycle routes, open spaces, parking and infrastructure;

c) the siting, design and external appearance of all buildings and any other structures, including dimensioned plans and elevations together with the details of external materials;

d) a suitably detailed flood risk assessment inclusive of measures to reduce the risk of flooding within the site and the surrounding area;

e) the means of drainage and surface water strategy and methodology for sewage disposal, including Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SuDS), all set out in a comprehensive Drainage Assessment, including maintenance. SuDS shall be self-certified by a suitably qualified person;

f) the means of access to the site, including appropriate provision for walking, cycling and public transport;

g) the design and location of all boundary treatments including walls and fences; h) details of landscaping and associated maintenance proposals, including details of existing trees, hedgerows and other planting to be retained and tree protection measures together with detailed proposals for all new planting and its aftercare; and

i) a phasing plan for the development, the details of which may subsequently be varied through written agreement with North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.

2. The application(s) for approval of these further matters must be made to the Council as Planning Authority before whichever is the latest of the following:

(a) expiry of 5 years from when this permission in principle was granted

(b) expiry of 6 months from date when an earlier application for approval was refused, and

(c) expiry of 6 months from date on which an appeal against the refusal was dismissed. Approval of the further specified matters can be made for -

(i) different matters, and

(ii) different parts of the development at different times.

Only one application for approval of matters specified in conditions can be made after 5 years from the grant of this planning permission in principle.

- 3. The proposed development shall be designed in accordance with the principles of the Scottish Government's "Designing Streets" and Designing Places" policy documents and any replacements thereof and North Ayrshire Council's Neighbourhood Design Guidance to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.
- 4. That prior to the commencement of the development, hereby approved, the applicant shall submit for the written approval of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority, a Strategy for Open Space which shall include proposals for (i) the provision of open space and play provision, in accordance with the North Ayrshire Council policy "Provision and Maintenance of Landscaping, Open Space and Play Areas in New Housing Developments" and any replacements thereof, together with proposals for the management and maintenance of open space.
- 5. That the further application(s) required under the terms of Condition 1 above shall include submission of a strategic assessment of how new buildings shall reduce their CO2 emissions to a level above or in line with the building standards through appropriately designed: on-site low or zero carbon generating technologies (LZCGTs); and/or passive/operational energy efficiency measures. The specific implementation/detail documentation shall be submitted at the time of submission for Building Warrant, all to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.
- That the recommendations within the Ecology Assessment Survey submitted in 6. support of the application, shall be reviewed and implemented to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. Details shall be submitted demonstrating of the undertaking and/or programming of these recommendations. In addition, details of a scheme for the removal of non-native species from the site, shall be submitted for the approval in writing of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. Thereafter any such scheme, which may be approved, shall be implemented to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority
- 7. That prior to the commencement of the development, hereby approved, the applicant shall undertake a desk study of the application site, (including the review of any previous site investigations) to assess the likelihood of contamination and assist in the design of an appropriate site investigation and subsequent suitable quantitative risk assessment as advocated in BS10175: 2011. Remediation proposals shall also be presented in relation to any significant findings. All documentation shall be verified by a suitably qualified Environmental Consultant and submitted to North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. Any required remediation measures shall be undertaken, prior to the commencement of the development to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. Thereafter the presence of any significant unsuspected contamination,

which becomes evident during the development of the site, shall be reported to North Ayrshire Council and treated in accordance with an agreed remediation scheme. On completion of the proposed works written verification, detailing what was done by way of any remediation, shall also be submitted to the North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.

8. The development hereby approved shall commence in phases, and in accordance with the following transport requirements, unless otherwise agreed in writing by North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority and in consultation with Transport Scotland. For the avoidance of doubt, not more than 180 houses constructed on the site shall be occupied until either:

(i) An updated transport assessment has been submitted to and approved by the planning authority, in consultation with Transport Scotland, confirming that additional development can be accommodated within the capacity of the trunk road network; OR

(ii) An updated transport assessment has been submitted to and approved by the planning authority, in consultation with Transport Scotland, confirming that additional development can be accommodated within the capacity of the trunk road network in the event of the implementation of appropriate measures identified within the approved transport assessment; OR

(iii) The modifications to the A78(T)/A738(T) Pennyburn Roundabout, generally as indicated in SIAS drawing number 75064-1 titled 'Pennyburn Roundabout Signalisation - Revision 1', and the modifications to the A738(T)/Pennyburn Road mini-roundabout and the A738(T) Whitehirst Road signalised to form a roundabout junction generally as indicated in SIAS drawing number 75064-5 titled Whitehirst Park Road have been implemented; OR (iv) North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority Planning Authority or any other party has concluded an appropriate legal agreement or agreements for the funding and implementation of the works to mitigate the development.

- 9. That there shall be no means of direct access onto the A78 trunk road either pedestrian or vehicular.
- 10. That prior to the commencement of the development, details of a barrier along the boundary of the site with the A738 trunk road and with the A78 trunk road, shall be submitted for the approval in writing of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. Thereafter the details, as may be approved, shall be provided and maintained by the developer or subsequent owner of the land to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.

5.1 20/00296/MDPO: Ardrossan Harbour, Montgomerie Street, Ardrossan

Clydeport Properties Limited have applied for a discharge of section 75 agreement relating to planning permission 01/00753/OPP. No representations were received.

Councillor McMaster seconded by Councillor Foster, moved to approve the discharge of section 75 agreement.

There being no amendment, the motion was declared carried.

Accordingly, the Committee agreed to grant the application.

6.1 20/00222/PP: Site To South East Of 41 Tarbert Avenue, West Kilbride

Mr Robert MacMillian has applied to remove condition 7 of planning permission in principle 18/00393/PPPM. 2 objections were received and summarised in the report.

The Chief Planning Officer (Planning) referred to a typographical error within section 1 of the report, clarifying that the application related to West Kilbride and not to Largs.

Councillor Marshall seconded by Councillor Foster, moved to approve the application subject to conditions.

There being no amendment, the motion was declared carried.

Accordingly, the Committee agreed to grant the application subject to the following conditions:

- 1. That prior to the submission of the first application for the approval of matters specified in conditions (MSC), a programme of archaeological works in accordance with a written scheme of investigation, the results of which shall inform the layout of the detailed masterplan required by Condition 3, shall be submitted for the approval of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. Thereafter, the developer shall ensure that the approved programme of archaeological works is fully implemented and that all recording and recovery of archaeological resources within the development site is undertaken to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.
- 2. That prior to the submission of the first application for the approval of matters specified in conditions (MSC), a water and drainage assessment shall be submitted for the approval of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority which actions all relevant recommendations of the Flood Risk Assessment. The water and drainage assessment shall demonstrate that:

(i) the development will not be at high medium of low likelihood of flooding or will increase the likelihood of flooding elsewhere;

(ii) run-off to the site from adjacent steeply sloping ground shall be intercepted and appropriately attenuated and treated before discharging to the water environment or to a suitable piped system; (iii) in the event that surface water will discharge to the existing culvert at the site's Western edge, there would no notable negative impact in terms of flood risk and water quality; and,

(iv) full details of the parties responsible for the maintenance of all drainage assets are provided in a suitably detailed plan and that all associated maintenance operations are identified on an accompanying schedule;

The water and drainage assessment shall detail a scheme to treat the surface water arising from the site in accordance with the principles and practices contained in CIRIA's SuDS Manual (C753) (published 11th November 2015), the results of which shall inform the layout of the detailed masterplan required by Condition 3. Thereafter, the scheme as may be approved shall be implemented during the course of development and maintained thereafter to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.

3. Prior to the commencement of development on site, a further application(s) for the approval of the matters specified in this condition (MSC) must be submitted to and approved by North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority. These matters are as follows:

(a) the layout of the site, including all roads, footways, shared paths, car parking areas, and open spaces;

(b) the siting, design and external appearance of all building(s) and any other structures, including plans and elevations showing their dimensions and type and colour of external materials;

(c) a detailed flood risk assessment, including cross-sections of existing and proposed ground levels, details of under-building and finished floor levels in relation to a fixed datum, preferably ordnance datum, and detailing how flood issues are addressed.

(d) the means of drainage and surface water strategy and methodology for sewage disposal, including Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS), all set out in a comprehensive Drainage Assessment, including maintenance. Such SUDS shall be self-certified by a suitably qualified person;

(e) the means of access to the site including an updated Transport Strategy;

(f) the design and location of all boundary treatments including walls and fences; (g) the landscaping and associated maintenance proposals for the site, including details of existing trees, hedgerows and other planting to be retained and tree protection measures together with proposals for new planting specifying number, size and species of all trees and shrubs and a woodland management implementation programme;

(h) details of the phasing of development (covering all relevant aspects of development detailed in (a) above);

(i) a design and access statement with the design issues addressed in the formulation of the proposals, set out in line with the relevant supplementary design guidance approved by North Ayrshire Council.

The layout of the site shall take into account archaeological investigations, the detailed SuDS scheme, water and drainage assessments required by conditions 1 and 2 respectively, and shall take into account the principles of the Scottish Government's 'Designing Streets' and 'Designing Places' policy documents to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.

- 4. That the presence of any significant unsuspected contamination that becomes evident during the development of the site shall be brought to the attention of Environmental Health. Thereafter a suitable investigation strategy as agreed with North Ayrshire Council shall be implemented and any necessary remediation works carried out prior to any further development taking place on the site, all to the satisfaction of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority.
- 5. That prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the developer shall submit a Construction Management Strategy Plan for the written approval of North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority to include details of routing arrangements for construction traffic. For the avoidance of doubt, the Strategy shall be designed to reduce potential adverse impacts on road safety and to minimise potential disruption and congestion for road users, pedestrians and local residents. Thereafter, the development shall progress in accordance with the Construction Management Strategy Plan as may be approved unless North Ayrshire Council as Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.
- 6. The applicant must demonstrate that the increased road traffic, generated as a result of this development, shall not have a detrimental effect on local air quality or result in an increase in concentrations of atmospheric pollutants such that statutory Air Quality Objectives would be exceeded at any location of relevant public exposure.

7. Development Plan Scheme

Submitted report by Executive Director (Place) on the indicative timetable and participation strategy for preparing the next Local Development Plan (LDP3).

Members asked questions and were provided with further information in relation to:

- the feasibility of the proposed evidence report submission date of August 2022 given the anticipated timing of the local government elections; and
- inclusion of the Locality Partnerships in the consultation.

Councillor McMaster seconded by Councillor Foster, moved to approve the Development Plan Scheme.

There being no amendment, the motion was declared carried.

Accordingly, the Committee agreed to approve the Development Plan Scheme.

8. Update on Notice under Section 179 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997: former Seafield School, Eglinton Road, Ardrossan

Submitted report by Executive Director (Place) on the progress with compliance with a Notice issued under Section 179 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1997

The Chief Planning Officer (Planning) advised the Committee that at the meeting of 4 September 2019, the Planning Committee granted authority for the issue of a Notice under Section 179 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, as amended, in relation to the former Seafield School, Eglinton Road, Ardrossan.

The Notice was issued on 24 September 2019 and took effect on the 24 October 2019 as an appeal against the Notice was not made. The compliance period for the Notice expired on the 5 December 2019. The requirements of the Notice have not been met.

Members asked questions and were provided with further information in relation to:

- previous meetings with the applicant to resolve the situation;
- materials used for boarding the property windows;
- the notice for the site being in place for as long as is required; and
- building standards survey advising the building is structurally safe.

Councillor Larsen seconded by Councillor Marshall, moved to note the report.

There being no amendment, the motion was declared carried.

The meeting ended at 11.50 a.m.